127 DRAGON BATTERY 
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127 Battery was originally raised as No 6 Company Madras Artillery in 1778. Details of this period are obscure but it is recorded the Battery became B Company of 2nd Battalion Madras Artillery in 1812. In early 1841 the Battery was part of an expeditionary force sent to China to quell the mutinous Chinese: the First Chinese War. The Madras Artillery made an auspicious start of the campaign. At Canton, in the first major siege of the struggle the artillery bombardment proved so effective the city soon surrendered before a main assault could take place. The last engagement of the war occurred on the 21st of July 1842 at Chin-Kiang-Fu. After bringing effective fire down upon the fortified city from 400 yards away, artillery joined the infantry in the final assault. In the line with the infantry, the gunners stormed the walls of the city, and fought until all resistance was silenced. To express gratitude, the governor of India published an order of the day entitling the Batteries of the Madras Artillery to wear the insignia of a dragon with an imperial crown and the word China on their appointments. The Battery returned to India that year and in 1862 was transferred to the Royal Artillery as 2nd Battery, 20th Brigade Royal Artillery. Under various titles the Battery stayed in India until after the Boer War, returning to the UK in 1902.

By this time the Battery title was 50 Battery Royal Artillery and it deployed in 1914 with the British Expeditionary Force (BEF) to France as part of 34th Brigade Royal Artillery. The Battery gained 43 battle honours amongst which are the most infamous and bloody of the war: Mons, Aisne, Marne, Somme, Loos, Arras, Paschendale, Ypres and Cambrai. The Battery was with the 2nd Division for the final advance to the Rhine in 1918, remaining after the war with the Army of Occupation until 1919. The Battery entered World War 2 serving in Syria and Italy. In 1947, 50 (Dragon) Battery became 127 (Dragon) Battery with 49th Field Regiment Royal Artillery. Since then the Battery has served in West Germany, Borneo, Hong Kong, Cyprus, UK and Belize. It has deployed in an operational capacity in Borneo, Northern Ireland, the Falklands (OP parties only), and the 1991 Gulf War. In 1992, 49th Field Regiment was placed into suspended animation, in July that year the Battery joined 26th Field Regiment Royal Artillery in Germany. In 1993-1994 the Battery deployed to Northern Ireland, then Bosnia in 1996. In 1998 the Battery returned to Bosnia. The Battery deployed to the Gulf for the second time in 2003 reinforcing 3rd Regiment Royal Horse Artillery.

On the 24th July 2003, the Battery joined 19th Regiment Royal Artillery (The Highland Gunners) in Wiltshire and deployed to Iraq on OP TELIC 6 in April 2005. In April 2007 the Battery deployed on OP HERRICK 6. In October 2008 the Battery moved from Larkhill to a new home in Tidworth. In March 2009 the Battery Commander with FU/FOO troop deployed on OP HERRICK 10 with 40th Regiment Royal Artillery (The Lowland Gunners). In June 2009 members of the Battery deployed with 39th Regiment Royal Artillery with X-Troop. In March 2012 the Battery deployed to Afghanistan once again, as part of 12 Mechanised Brigade on OP HERRICK 16. The battery today in 2016 forms part of 1 Artillery Brigade, supporting 12 Armoured Infantry Brigade.  
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